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Vermont 
Richford Local Protection Project 
The Richford Local Protection Project is located on the 
Missisquoi River in Richford, at the confl uence of the 
North Branch and Missisquoi River. The project is ap-
proximately one mile from the Canadian border.

The project is designed to reduce damages caused by ice 
jam fl ooding in the vicinity of Big Island, which is situ-
ated at a sharp bend in the river west of the town center.

Ice jams along this section of the Missisquoi River did 
not occur prior to 1950 when the Sweat and Comings 
Dam existed (The Sweat and Comings Company, a furni-
ture manufacturing fi rm, used the dam for power genera-
tion and log transportation). The 12-foot-high stone and 
timber dam, located approximately 250 feet upstream of 
the Main Street Bridge, showed signifi cant deterioration 
in the 1940s and was removed in 1947 The fi rst ice jam of 
record in Richford occurred in March 1950, causing, ac-
cording to one source, “the greatest amount of property damage since the fl ood of 1927. “ Signifi cant ice jam fl ood-
ing also occurred in March 1955, April 1959, March 1960, and February 1961.

In response to a request from Vermont state offi cials for assistance, the Corps constructed a project in Richford be-
tween December 1961 and June 1964 at the cost of $221,000. The project was built by the Corps’ New York District 
and is maintained by Richford.

The project involved:

    •Excavating a new channel through Big Island for 1,870 feet.
    •Excavating 2,010 feet of an existing channel. The work begins in the main channel at a point about 860 feet 
downstream of the Main Street Bridge and extends into the existing stream south of Big Island. The channel is 40 
feet wide.
    •Constructing a 160-foot-long stone weir on the left bank of the main channel to prevent ice jams.
    •Constructing a 350-foot-long stone dike on the right bank of the main channel.
    •Removing two shoals at the mouth of North Branch and a small island about 300 feet long in the Missisquoi 
River.

U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS - NEW ENGLAND DISTRICT
696 VIRGINIA ROAD, CONCORD, MA 01742-2751

http://www.nae.usace.army.mil

Aerial view of Richford Local Protection Project, located on the Missis-
quoi River in Richford, Vt., at the confl uence of the North Branch and 
Missisquoi River. The project is in Vermont approximately one mile 
from the Canadian border. (Click photo for high-resolution version)
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The Corps of Engineers has conducted a study on providing additional ice jam fl ood protection to Richford.

The Missisquoi River rises from mountain streams on the eastern slope of Belvidere Mountain in Lowell and fl ows 
northerly through Westfi eld and Troy before entering the province of Quebec. The river fl ows through the province 
for about 12 miles before reentering the United States at Richford. The river then fl ows westerly through Berkshire, 
Enosburg, Sheldon, and Highgate, and enters Lake Champlain at Swanton. The river has a total length of 88 miles.
Street Bridge; the second is located about 130 feet from the northeast end of Congress Street; the third is located 
about 70 feet from the northeast end of Bradford Street; and the fourth is located approximately 610 feet northeast 
of the intersection of Branch and Gage Streets.
    •A ponding area, measuring about 350 feet by 250 feet, that impounds excess storm water in conjunction with the 
fi rst drainage structure described above. The ponding area is located on the east side of Park Street, about 450 feet 
south of the Park Street Bridge.
    •A pumping station located adjacent to the ponding area and the fi rst drainage structure.

During the fl oods of December 1948 and August 1950, a 725-foot-long section of the WPA-built fl oodwall was 
seriously damaged. The Corps reconstructed this section of fl oodwall as a small project under Section 208 of the 
Continuing Authorities Program. Construction was initiated in July 1951 and was completed in April 1952 at a cost 
of $196,000. This 725-foot-long section of the WPA-built fl oodwall was later incorporated as part of the Benning-
ton Local Protection Project.

During August 9-12, 1976, heavy rains from Hurricane Belle caused fl ooding throughout Vermont. These rains 
undermined a 250-foot-long section of fl oodwall by dislodging the stone slope protection at its base and exposing 
its footing. The placement of additional stone slope protection to secure the fl oodwall was completed in June 1977 
at a cost of $18,000. 
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